
CABINET OVERVIEW WORKING GROUP 
Thursday, 27th November 2014, at 7.30 pm 

Council Chamber, Civic Centre 
 

AGENDA 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 To receive Councillors’ declarations of interest (if any) in relation to any 

matters on the agenda. 
 

3. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 3) 
 
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2014. 

 
4. Matters arising   
 
 Any matters arising from the minutes of the previous meeting. 

 
5. Local Council Tax Support Scheme  (Pages 4 - 10) 
 
6. Work Plan  (Page 11) 
 
 To review the Overview Working Group’s work plan for the current year. 

 
7. Matters of Urgent Business   
 
 Such other business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 

received as a matter of urgency by reason of special circumstances to be 
specified in the minutes. 
 

Public Document Pack



 

MINUTES OF THE CABINET OVERVIEW WORKING GROUP 
HELD ON 

 
15 October 2014 7.30  - 9.25 pm 
 
 
PRESENT 
 
Overview Working Group Members 
Councillor Maggie Hulcoop (Chair) 
Councillor Dennis Palmer (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Ian Beckett 
Councillor Simon Carter 
Councillor Manny Doku 
Councillor Linda Pailing 
Councillor Bill Pryor 
 
Officers 
Joe McGill, Properties, Facilities and Projects Manager 
Lisa Purse, Corporate and Governance Support Officer 
Simon Freeman, Head of Finance 
 
13. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies of absence were received from Councillors David Carter and 
Christine O’Dell. 
 

14. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
None. 
 

15. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 4 September 
2014 are agreed as a correct record. 

 
16. MATTERS ARISING  

 
None. 
 

17. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY REPORT  
 
The Overview Working Group received a report from the Head of Finance 
on the Medium Term Financial Strategy.  Particular attention was given to 
the General Fund Budget Parameters 2015/16-2019/20.  
 
The Overview Working Group noted the elements of financial planning that 
are outside the Council’s direct control, listed in paragraph 2.13 of the 
MTFS.  It asked that the Cabinet in particular be made aware of the 
impending local government pay award, that has yet to be settled. 

1

Agenda Item 3



 
RESOLVED that: 
 
A The Working Group noted the report and the underpinning 
principles that supports the MTFS. 
 
B The Working Group asks Cabinet to note the impending local 
government pay award that is not yet settled.  If a pay increase is 
approved there may be short, medium and long term budget 
impacts for the Council. 

 
18. COMMUNITY BASED ASSETS REPORT  

 
The Overview Working Group received a report from the Head of 
Regeneration on a review of Community Based Assets. Councillors 
discussed the large number of Council owned assets and how carrying out 
a comprehensive review would involve significant Councillor and Officer 
time.  Councillors expressed hope that the energies of this review would 
not be jeopardised by potential political change.   
 
RESOLVED that: 
 

A the Working Group noted the content of the report and reviewed 
the assets at Appendix 1 of the report. 
 
B the Working Group seeks cross-party agreement that the 
Community Asset Review will remain a Council priority until its work 
has been completed.  

 
19. WORK PLAN 2014/15  

 
The Overview Working Group received a report that outlined its work plan 
for the current year.   
 
Councillors suggested that further consideration of the Community Based 
Asset Review be allocated to the 15 January 2015 meeting as there will be 
more findings and external witnesses could attend.  
 

RESOLVED that: 
 
The 2014/15 Work Plan is noted, subject to the addition of further 
consideration of the Community Based Asset Review at the 
meeting of 15 January 2015.  

 
20. MATTERS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 
None. 
 

  

2



 CHAIRMAN OF THE OVERVIEW 
WORKING GROUP 

3



REPORT TO: OVERVIEW WORKING GROUP  
 

DATE: 27 NOVEMBER 2014 
 

TITLE: ANNUAL REVIEW OF LOCAL COUNCIL TAX 
SUPPORT SCHEME (LCTSS) 
 

LEAD OFFICER(S): 
 

SIMON FREEMAN, HEAD OF FINANCE  
(01279) 446228 
 

CONTRIBUTING 
OFFICER(S):  

DONNA P BEECHENER, REVENUES & 
BENEFITS MANAGER (01279) 446245 

 
RECOMMENDED that Overview Working Group: 
 
A Acknowledges the current position regarding the 2014/15 Local Council Tax 

Support Scheme and endorses the principle of stability within the scheme for 
2015/16. 
 

B Endorses the Pan Essex Business Case approach to protecting the Council 
Tax base and the proposal to introduce penalties as detailed in the report. 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. In accordance with the Welfare Reform Act 2012, and the Local Government 

Finance Act 2012, Councils are required to implement a Local Council Tax 
Support Scheme (LCTS) annually, and by 31 January each year at the latest 
for the forthcoming financial year. 
 

2. The Pan Essex working group, originally established to consider a County wide 
approach to the localisation of Council Tax support, has continued to work 
effectively and has been looking at other aspects of collection. The group has 
now finalised proposals to implement a third business case relating to the 
implementation of a range of measures targeted at ensuring that each 
authority across Essex undertakes work on a consistent basis to help protect 
the tax base in each district. It is proposed to undertake work based on 
compliance to check and challenge Council Tax reductions awarded for which 
entitlement may have subsequently changed. 
 

 Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) 
 

3. The national Council Tax Benefit (CTB) scheme, which was wholly funded by 
Central Government and administered locally by billing authorities, was 
abolished with effect from 1 April 2013.The Council approved its local scheme 
for the 2014/15 financial year at its meeting held on 19 December 2013. 

4

Agenda Item 5



 
4. Prior to the introduction of LCTS there had been no cap on CTB expenditure. 

However, with the introduction of LCTS Government funding was restricted 
through the introduction of a cash limit in the form of a fixed grant. In addition 
the grant was set at a level which was 10% less than the previous Council Tax 
benefit expenditure estimated from 2012/13. For Harlow this represents a 
reduction in funding of around £1.3 million per annum from April 2013. 
 

5. The grant for LCTS was originally identified specifically within the Council’s 
overall Revenue Support Grant and retained Business Rates income for 
2013/14. The level of funding for 2014/15 and future years has not been 
identified in the same way and has been included in the Council’s overall 
Revenue Support Grant and Retained Business Rates – overall Formula 
Funding. As a result of this there is no protection for the LCTS funding and it is 
subject to the wider Government cuts to Local Government funding. 
 

6. In order to ensure that Pensionable Age customers should be no worse off 
under the local scheme, national rules remain in place for this group of 
claimants. As protection remains in place for those of Pensionable Age, the 
impact of the reduction in funding has fallen upon Working Age claimants as 
reported during the implementation of the 2013/14 and 2014/15 schemes. 
 

7. Harlow Council is part of a Pan Essex Project Group, with a remit to design an 
Essex Framework for LCTS. The principles of the framework were reported to 
Cabinet on 12 July 2012. On 22 November 2012 Harlow Council adopted a 
LCTS scheme following public consultation during the summer of 2012 based 
on these principles, which are detailed below: 
 

a. The scheme will be cost neutral. 
b. Council tax support will continue to be assessed on a means tested 

basis. 
c. Council tax support will not be paid above Council tax band H. 
d. Council tax support is capped at 76% of council tax liability. 
e. The first £25 of weekly earnings are disregarded in the calculation of 

support. 
f. There is no entitlement to support where the applicant has capital of 

over £6,000 
g. Second adult rebate and underlying entitlement were abolished to 

remove the administrative burden of these. 
 

8. Harlow has ensured that in the development of the local scheme the eligibility 
criteria for LCTS remains aligned with the previous national Council Tax 
benefit scheme, with specific protection for families and persons with 
disabilities. In addition and despite the reductions in overall Government grant 
received by the Council the scheme has been supported and maintained 
without variation to the above principles for its second full year of operation. 

5



 
9. The current scheme was designed to deliver savings of £1,361,235 to ensure 

that expenditure on LCTS did not exceed the total Government funding 
allocated for the scheme.  At the time of writing this report the LCTS scheme 
costs for the current and previous financial year are as follows: 
 

 
LCTS Award 1 April 2013 31 March 2014 31 October 2014 

    

Pensionable Age    

Caseload 3,819 3,673 3,547 

LCTS Award £3,535,031 £3,483,230 £3,273,833 

    

Working Age    

Caseload 5,302 5,189 4,890 

LCTS Award £3,810,068 £3,741,202 £3,453,178 

    

Total LCTS Award £7,345,099 £7,117,494 £6,727,011 

Harlow Council 
Scheme Funding 

£1,281,756 £1,281,756 £1,281,756 

 
10. It was estimated that the in-year council tax collection rate for 2013/14 in 

Harlow would be affected by the introduction of LCTS and could fall by over 
3% compared to the collection rate in 2012/13. Council tax collection at the 
end of the second quarter in 2014/15 is reported at 56.28%, compared to a 
collection rate of 56.83% for the same period in the 2012/13 financial year. At 
the time of writing this report –  
 

• Council Tax collection rate is currently exceeding original forecasts.  
The introduction of a 12 month instalment scheme by the Government 
will also be impacting on the collection statistics when compared with 
prior years with income having been collected predominantly over 10 
months. 

 

• The additional funding provided within the agreement with the 
precepting bodies has enabled employment of extra staff dedicated to 
workingwith LCTS claimants. This has meant that the normal collection 
processes on the remaining non LCTS clients has not been 
compromised. 

 

• There is continuing good engagement with LCTS claimants meaning 
that it has been possible to agree payment arrangements with 
residents at an early stage, reducing the number of summonses issued 
and avoiding the need for further action. 
 

 

6



 
11. Recovery action for Council Tax in LCTS cases has been taken in 

accordance with legislation with the addition of the specialist advice from the 
LCTS officers. Of the 4,890 working age LCTS claimants, 1,456, (29.8%) 
have received a final notice where a payment has not been received, and 
901 (18.4%) of the total working age claimants have been summonsed. 
Where a summons has been issued, the Council continues to work to 
engage with those affected to provide support and advice to reach a 
payment solution wherever possible and subject to the claimant’s willingness 
to disclose relevant information and work with Council Officers. 
 

12. Whilst the collection position is currently higher than expected and the level 
of support being awarded has fallen, recovery of amounts falling due can 
take several years to collect and it is currently too early in the operation of 
the new scheme to be able to forecast what the final collection position will 
be for the first year of its operation. 
 

 LCTS 2015/16 Proposals 
 

13. Officers are keeping the performance of the LCTS scheme under review but 
as we plan for 2015/16 there is still only a very short period of operation of 
the scheme – one full financial year, on which to base judgements and 
future estimates. Harlow’s Government funding through RSG and retained 
Business Rates is expected to reduce by 16.2%in 2015/16Giving an implied 
reduction in the funding for LCTS of over £200,000. 
 

14. Monitoring of the local scheme indicates that the collection is maintaining a 
strong level of recovery and engagement with residents impacted by the 
changes has been extremely good. In order to maintain certainty for 
claimants and to the Council, the proposals for the scheme in 2015/16 are to 
maintain the restriction on the entitlement to support at 24% for a further 
year. The Council is not intending to pass any of the reductions in its core 
Formula Funding arrangements on to claimants as a result of the ongoing 
Government cuts. 
 

15. A public consultation exercise was conducted in 2013 on the current LCTS 
scheme for 2014/15, and as it is proposed that the current scheme 
continues unchanged for a further year in 2015/16, a subsequent public 
consultation exercise has not been undertaken. 
 

16. A full equalities impact assessment was carried out on the current 2014/15 
scheme. If the proposals for maintaining the scheme for 2015/16 are 
approved then no further assessment will be required. 
 

 Essex wide Business case 
 

7



17. The Pan Essex group presented a two part business case to the major 
precepting authorities (Essex County Council, Police and Crime 
Commissioner for Essex and Essex County Fire and Rescue Service). The 
business case focussed on the help and support that could be offered to 
those residents affected by the changes in the benefit arrangements and 
also intended to minimise the impact on council tax collection. 
 

18. As a result funding was secured for an Exceptional Hardship fund (EHF) of 
£14,000, and contributions of £42,000 for additional staff resource to support 
and assist residents affected by the change. This agreement covered 
financial contributions for the period 2013/14 to 2015/16. 
 

19. The additional funding secured from the precepting bodies has been used to 
locally to secure two temporary members of staff to work proactively with 
those households affected by the introduction of LCTS. The work 
undertaken by these officers has proven to be extremely effective in 
ensuring early intervention and support to those most impacted by the 
change from CTB to LCTS. Support has also been made available through 
the officers in relation to the wider context of the Governments Welfare 
Reform agenda. 
 

20. Building upon the success of the joined up approach to the earlier business 
case, the Pan Essex Group have submitted a third business case to the 
Major Precepting Authorities regarding the implementation of a Counter 
Fraud and Compliance regime. This covers not only LCTS but also extends 
to Council Tax Discounts and Council Tax Exemptions. 
 

21. The new business case again seeks to obtain investment from the 
precepting authorities in order to help and support those that may be 
affected by the change to the lower funded LCTS schemes  It also seeks 
additional financial support to complement the collection and safeguarding 
approach taken within the previous business cases by providing a 
framework to ensure that any reductions, discounts and exemptions given 
are granted correctly and remain correct throughout the financial year. 
 

22. The pressure placed on all local authority finances has increased 
significantly and there is an immediate requirement to maximise the Council 
Tax base. It has been estimated that between 3% and 11% of any 
discounts, reductions and exemptions claimed against council tax are either 
incorrect or fraudulently claimed. The potential for increasing the tax base is 
therefore substantial both locally and across the County.  
 

23. Any additional amounts collected will benefit all authorities. In view of this it 
is proposed that support be given to Billing Authorities to increase the overall 
level of compliance work and where necessary to clamp down on fraud and 
non-reporting in this area. 

8



 
24. A failure to act will inevitably lead to a continued erosion of the tax base over 

time and a general complacency on the part of Council Tax payer resulting 
in a loss of potential revenue to all authorities. In order to mitigate the 
potential losses, it is proposed that the current scope of the Council’s 
compliance and counter fraud activities is widened to include all areas of 
Council Tax reductions.  
 

25. Under the regulations billing authorities are entitled to impose penalties on 
claimants who incorrectly or knowingly fail to report changes in their 
circumstances which would affect entitlement any discount or exemption. It 
is also proposed that the Council will impose penalties in line with those 
available under the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and that a penalty 
of £70 will be imposed where such a failure to report changes is identified 
with effect from 1 April 2015 Prior to imposing penalties, the responsibility of 
taxpayers to report changes will be clearly publicised through adverts and 
notifications on relevant demands and other correspondence. 
 

 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
Regeneration (includes Sustainability) 

No implications specifically arise from the Council Tax Benefit reforms. Welfare 
Reform more widely will have a range of different impacts on delivery of 
Regeneration objectives. 
Author: Graeme Bloomer, Head of Regeneration 

 

Finance (Includes ICT) 
Financial impacts of the LCTSS scheme are being considered as part of the 
wider budget process and development of the Medium Term Financial Strategy. If 
the Council agrees the final scheme in line with the agreed principles then it is 
expected to be broadly cost neutral although there will be uncertainties regarding 
recovery rates and the impact upon the Collection Fund until the scheme is 
actually in operation. 
Author: Simon Freeman, Head of Finance  
 
Housing 

None Specific 

Author: Andrew Murray, Head of Housing 

 
Community Wellbeing (includes Equalities and Social Inclusion) 

9



The proposal to continue the existing LCTSS scheme will represent a proper 
balance between the needs of vulnerable people and the available resources, as 
the existing scheme was subject to consultation and a full Equalities Impact 
Assessment. Proposals to provide support to claimants and prevent error and 
fraud through the Pan Essex working group are to be welcomed as these 
measures are expected to ensure that available resources can be directed to 
those who are entitled to benefit. 
Author: Michael Pitt, Environment and Licensing Manager for Graham 
Branchett Chief Operating Officer 
 
Governance (includes HR) 
The Council must have the LCTSS in place by 31 January 2015.  The scheme 
will remain unchanged for 2015/16 if the recommendations to Cabinet are agreed 
and therefore no further consultation is required over that carried out in 2013/14. 
Author: Brian Keane, Interim Head of Governance 
 
Background Papers 
Harlow http://www.harlow.gov.uk/council-tax-support-scheme-2014-15pdf 
 
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/2013/11/protecting-the-public-purse-2013/ 
 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/annual-fraud-indicator--2 
 
Glossary of terms/abbreviations used 
 
CTB – Council Tax Benefit 
LCTS – Local Council Tax Support 

 

10



Updated 22/10/14 

Cabinet Overview Working Group  

Work Plan 2014/15 

 

15 January 2015  

Community Bases Asset Review Graeme Bloomer 

12 March 2015  

Future of Town Centre – Part 2  Graeme Bloomer 

Housing Works Packages 2015/16 Andrew Murray 

To be allocated  

Empty Council Properties (scoping report to be 
considered no earlier than March 2015) 

Andrew Murray 

M11 Junction 7a (subject to receipt of 
consultation information 
from Essex County Council ) 

Graeme Bloomer 

 

 
 
 

11

Agenda Item 6


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Local Council Tax Support Scheme
	6 Work Plan

